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Guelph, Ontario

Proportions:  2:3 
Adopted:  20 November 1993	     

Population Rank:  Canada. . . . 28
		        Province. . . . 12

DESIGN:  The flag of the City of Guelph is a horizontal bicolour, red over 
white.  In the upper hoist is the head of a Hanoverian horse in white, facing 
the hoist.  In the lower hoist is an “ancient”, or open, crown of three visible 
points, in red.  Both figures are outlined in black, with black details.

SYMBOLISM:  The colours come from the city’s coat of arms and allude 
to the national colours of Canada.  The horse-head and crown are simplified 
depictions of the horse and crowns on the arms, which symbolize the royal 
family of Hanover, descended from the Guelfs of Germany and Italy.  John 
Galt, the settler who cut down the first tree to found Guelph in 1827, gave it 
that name because the king of the United Kingdom at the time was George 
IV, a member of the Brunswick-Hanover line, and hence a descendant of 
the Guelphs (as the British spell the name).  Guelph is therefore known as 
Canada’s “Royal City”.  Moreover, on 24 April 1879 Mayor George Howard 
declared the municipality to be a lawful city, after which Alderman MacMil-
lan raised the royal standard on the flag-staff of the speakers’ platform, sym-
bolizing the “Royal City”.
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HOW SELECTED:  On 20 November 1993 the Canadian Heraldic Author-
ity registered an earlier grant of arms from the English Garter King of Arms 
(1977) and granted a new flag and badge.

DESIGNER:  Darrel Kennedy, a resident of Guelph; he later became Assini-
boine Herald, Canadian Heraldic Authority.

MORE ABOUT THE FLAG:  The flag is not a banner of arms in the tradi-
tional sense, but uses key elements of the arms in its design.  Because Guelph 
also has a true banner of arms flag (see below), which represents the city’s 
government, this flag is known as the “citizens’ flag”.   Although adopted 
in 1993, it was finally first waved (by hand) on 24 October 2001 by former 
mayor Norm Jary and raised at an official function for the first time on 23 
April 2002 at City Hall during the city’s 175th anniversary in the presence 
of the lieutenant governor of Ontario.

OTHER FLAGS:  A 21 July 1965 arti-
cle in the Daily Mercury cited noted 
vexillologist Rev. D. Ralph Spence’s 
comment that Guelph’s (first) city flag 
was a “horrible city flag”.  In response 
to that Verne McIlwraith wrote that 
while the flag was originally his idea, 
which he had thought a good one, he 

acknowledged that it had been “shot down” by Spence’s remark.  Neverthe-
less, it remained in use until 1977.  The flag, in proportions of roughly 2:3, 
has a medium blue field with the city’s first coat of arms edged in white, about 
half the flag’s width, in the centre. Beneath the arms is GUELPH – CAN-
ADA in white, running two-thirds the length of the flag.  The arms show a 
simple white shield with two green horizontal bars, one in the lower half of 
the shield’s upper third, and the other in the upper half of the shield’s lower 
third.  Two narrow white horizontal stripes separate the green bars from a red 
field that makes up the centre third of the shield.  On the red field is a white 
horse, galloping toward the hoist.  On the left is a woodsman (John Galt) 
holding an axe over his shoulder.  On the right is Britannia holding a cornu-
copia with assorted fruit and leaves.  Against her right leg leans an oval shield, 
bearing the flag of Britain used in 1827.  The crest has what was earlier, and 
erroneously, thought to be the Guelphic royal crown, to show a connection to 
the British royal family, topped by a lion headed toward the hoist, right front 
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paw raised, looking toward the viewer.  In reality, it was the royal crest for the 
sovereign of the United Kingdom, as used in England.  The heraldic ribbon 
is divided in three parts inscribed FIDES   FIDELITAS   PROGRESSIO, 
one word on each part.  It is not known when the earliest flag was first used, 
but the original coat of arms dates to 1879.  
 

The city’s second flag, still used as the governmen-
tal flag, is the banner of arms created as a result of 
the grant of arms from the English Garter King 
of Arms, for which Darrel Kennedy was the agent 
between the city and Windsor Herald at the Col-
lege of Arms.  A carving was produced in 1977 by 
Eric Barth, assisted by local historians, for the city’s 
sesquicentennial.  However, it had been based on 

preliminary art and omitted material from the final blazon.  The grant of arms 
was issued on 8 May 1978 and the Letters Patent were presented to the city 
on 28 September 1978 by York Herald.  A number of heraldic errors in the 
first arms were corrected.  The new arms retain the white horse, but it is now 
of the Hanoverian breed; the green bars are reduced in width to stripes; and 
in the white field at the top are two ancient red crowns, with a third centred 
in the shield’s lower third, all alluding to royal connections.  The banner of 
arms places the charges from the shield on a white flag that is nearly square, 
10:9.  The colours date from 1879 and derive from the arms of the County 
of Kent, England.   

A variant of the banner of arms is also 
sometimes used, having been approved 
only by the city council.  This flag, in 1:2 
proportions, has GUELPH and CANADA 
inscribed in black serifed letters on either 

side of the lower crown.  Hence, Guelph has the unique distinction of having 
three city flags in use simultaneously.

FORMER FLAG:  The township of Guelph 
used a Canadian pale design of blue-white-
blue, with the crest, shield, and ribbon from 
the town’s arms set in a white disc ringed 
by THE CORPORATION OF above and 

THE TOWNSHIP OF GUELPH below, in serifed letters.
JP


